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It’s me; my Lord!

Inam R Sehri

• Born in Lyallpur (Pakistan) in April 1948

• First Degree from Government College Lyallpur (1969)

• Studied at Government College Lahore & got first Master’s Degree from Punjab University Lahore (1971);

• Attachment with AJK Education Service (1973-1976)

• Central Superior Services (CSS) Exam passed (batch 1975)

• Civil Service Academy Lahore (joined 1976)

• National Police Academy Islamabad (joined 1977)

• LLB from BUZ University Multan (1981)

• Master’s Degree from Exeter University of UK (1990)

• Regular Police Service: District Admin, Police College, National Police Academy, the Intelligence Bureau (IB), Federal Investigation Agency (FIA) [1977-1998] then migrated to the UK permanently.

A part-script copied from the earlier volumes:

Just spent a normal routine life; with hundreds of mentionable memoirs allegedly of bravery & glamour as every uniformed officer keeps, some times to smile at and next moment to repent upon but taking it just normal except one or two spills.

During my tenure at IB HQ Islamabad I got chance to peep into the elite civil and military leadership of Pakistan [then] existing in governmental dossiers and database.

During my stay at FIA I was assigned to conduct special enquiries & investigations into some acutely sensitive matters like Motorway Scandal, sudden expansion and build-up of Sharif family’s industrial empire, Sharif’s accounts in foreign countries; Alleged Financial Corruptions in Pakistan’s Embassies in Far-Eastern Countries; Shahnawaz Bhutto’s murder in Cannes (France); Land Scandals of CDA’s Estate Directorate; Ittefaq Foundry’s ‘custom duty on scrap’ scam, Hudaibya Engineering & Hudaibya Paper Mills enquiries, Bhindara’s Murree Brewery and tens more cases like that.

[Through these words I want to keep it on record that during the course of the above mentioned, (and also which cannot be mentioned due to space limits) investigations or enquiries, the then Prime Minister Benazir Bhutto, or [late] Gen Naseerullah Babar the then Federal Interior Minister, had never ever issued direct instructions or implicit directions or wished me to distort facts or to go malafide for orchestrating a political edge or other intangible gains or hidden benefits.]

Hats off to both of them!

Some top bureaucrats like Kh Zaheer, Afzal Kahoot and Saeed Mehdi twisted my arms in the name of Sharif’s anger firstly sent me home then tried to imprison me – only the INTERPOL’s investigations into my affairs could rescue me.

In Ingall Hall of the Pakistan Military Academy [PMA], it is carved:

“It is not what happens to you that matters but how you behave while it is happening”.

I should feel proud that veracity and truthfulness of none of my enquiry or investigation could be challenged or proved false in NAB or Special Courts; yes, most of them were used to avail political compromises by Gen Musharraf’s government.

That’s enough, my dear countrymen.

 

 

Want to know me more?

See Gabriel García Márquez’s fictional account of the last days of Simón Bolívar—a once-admired General who had been fêted around the world but spent his last days yearning for exile in Europe. “Let’s go, as fast as we can,” the dejected hero tells his companion on the first page of “The General in His Labyrinth” - “Nobody loves us here.”
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10TH HUMBLE SUBMISSION

Another Feather in Cap: After publishing of INAM R SEHRI’s book ‘Judges & Generals in Pakistan Vol-II’ in March 2012, the FRENCH authorities re-opened the Sub-marine kick back case again [perhaps] because a reference had been discussed in detail in Scenario 54 pps 670-693 of this book with reference to AA Zardari’s role.

On 10th January 2013; all media pages carried AFP report titled as French judges open new ‘Karachi’ probe against Sarkozy giving a little reference that:

“PARIS: French judges on Thursday authorised a fresh probe against ex-president Nicolas Sarkozy as part of the so-called “Karachi affair” in the latest legal headache faced by the former leader.

Three judges decided to proceed with a probe to see whether Sarkozy violated a confidentiality law when the Elysee presidential palace published a press release on the affair in September 2011. This press release [had] said that Sarkozy’s name did not figure in any of the files of the Karachi affair, which stems from a 2002 bombing that killed 11 French engineers.

The engineers’ families sued President Sarkozy over the press release, charging that it violated laws that prohibit publication of information about ongoing investigations. Although prosecution argued that Sarkozy cannot be investigated because he had presidential immunity at the time, the judges disagreed.

‘The act of permitting the release of information concerning ongoing investigations does not enter into the functions of the president,’ the three investigating judges said in their ruling.

The Karachi bombing has spawned several other investigations implicating Sarkozy, a right-winger who was defeated in his re-election bid last year by Socialist Francois Hollande.

Two close aides to Sarkozy have been charged by judges investigating alleged kickbacks on a Pakistani arms deal concluded when Sarkozy was budget minister. He allegedly authorised the creation of a shell company used to channel kickbacks to the then Prime Minister Edouard Balladur’s unsuccessful 1995 presidential bid.

In more serious allegations, magistrates are also probing whether the Karachi bombing was revenge for the cancellation of bribes secretly promised to Pakistani officials.”

PAK-ARMY’s ROLE in August 2014’s Dharna:

In Pakistan, the army mostly played its role as backstage actor, more appropriately as guardians of democracy; see the manifestations.

During PTI’s mass sit-in of August 2014, the Pak-Army’s Inter-Services Public Relations [ISPR], issued a general appeal to maintain sanctity of buildings like the Parliament, Supreme Court, PM House, Presidency etc.

Then came two clear advices from the army chief Gen Raheel Shareef himself; he told PM Nawaz Sharif to show flexibility, and at least take a step backwards. Then Punjab Chief Minister Shahbaz Sharif met him at his own request and got advised to start negotiations with protestors who were besieging and paralyzing the country’s capital for almost a week.

The General’s message was meant for both the government and the opposition parties for he knew that indirect intervention had become absolutely necessary to end a stalemate which had done enough damage to the country internally and externally. The trick worked; PM Nawaz contacted Sindh Governor Ishratul Ebad for Altaf Hussain’s help which was readily extended. Similarly, MQM’s Haider Abbas Rizvi and MNA Ejazul Haq acted as interlocutors between cleric politician Dr Tahirul Qadri and the PM.

PM Nawaz Sharif, guilty goof of making the whole mess, opted for yet another sham move. His decision to include Railway Minister Saad Rafiq in the 3-member negotiating team with Rizvi and Minister Qadir Baloch, was instantly rebuffed by Qadri’s followers. They refused to have any talk with him for being part of the massacre at Lahore secretariat of Minhajul Quran on 17th June earlier. His name was among the 21 ordered to be charge-sheeted for murder by a Session’s Court, which named the Sharif brothers too as principal culprits

PTI chief Imran Khan, leading another group of protestors to Islamabad, showed his willingness for negotiation with the PML[N] government; declaring that the army’s role had suddenly become momentous. Then PM Sharif had nearly agreed to mid-term elections after formation of a caretaker setup.

The Army wanted democracy to survive and shielded, and the constitutional authority of the civilian government to be respected but any agreement between the two main groups of protesters demanded the army’s written guarantee – which of course was not possible under rules.

The Election Commission was to be set up anew with superior court judges of reputed integrity at its helm; some kind of mechanism had to be evolved for banishing corruption in a country.

This long process could only be executed in stages. Articles 62 & 63 of the Pakistani Constitution were to be applied with honesty and vigour as was once done by former interim Prime Minister Moeen Qureshi in 1993 when a large number of people were kept away from the parliament. However, both Sharifs could be the victims of electoral reforms for corruption charges against them.

In the backdrop of Gen Musharraf’s words that ‘….no government in Pakistan can work without backing of the army’, the fact remains that politicians since 1988 made considerable mess, forgetting all tall promises announced through their respective manifestos.

Manifestly, Imran Khan lost the opportunity; politics is the game of give & take. Mr Khan did not agree with the Army Chief when the later offered him acceptance of seven out of eight demands; the 8th being the PM Nawaz Sharif’s resignation which was not tenable in the given circumstances. Khan continued his sit-in, the mob could not afford to sit for 126 days thus he had to withdraw, and leaving for home empty handed in the backdrop of attack on Army Public School Peshawar on 16th December 2014.

Another news appeared later [yet to be confirmed] that during his meeting with the army chief in GHQ, Imran Khan addressed Gen Raheel Sharif by his first name without addition of any respectable word like Mr [Mohtram, janab or sahib etc in Urdu] – just taking the General at par and did so many times. The General felt fed up and didn’t entertain Mr Khan with much fervour; thus the meeting could last just for about 15 minutes.

Sindh Lands Grabbed by Zardari & Co:

Reference to a live GEO TV show conducted by Shahzeb Khanzada on 23rd August 2015;

Sindh’s 26,800 Acres of agricultural land was grabbed by a front man of former president AA Zardari, named Anwar Majeed, using the name of six bogus companies. Out of six, five companies had the same address, e-mail contact and the same telephone numbers – AND existed on papers only.

The said lands were situated in districts of Badin, Thatta, Sajawal, and Dadoo of rural Sindh; AND mostly belonging to the Department of Forestry Sindh.

Under the original legislation, the said land could be given to local individuals only and on lease; the land limit was 40 Acres per family. The said land could not be allotted to any corporate body, or industrial concern or commercial company. The PPP government made a change in concerned Local & Special Law enabling the department to sell ‘unlimited lot’ to any one including a corporate body or Industrial concern.

The market rate of that land could be up to half a million per Acre whereas the AA Zardari’s friends bought it paying only Rs:1700 per acre for most of the lots; only a few lots were paid Rs:2600 per Acre.

A lot of 10,000 Acres of land had been bought in the name of Thatta Sugar Mills. Some years back it was state owned mills but Zardari had purchased it in Rs:110 million only. This mills has been working till two years back but now there is no machinery, no roof on most of the building and no worker is their on pay-roll. No crushing is on but why the land was bought in the mills name – quite obvious.

The real game behind was that Zardari & Co bought those lands for pennies. Then the same lands were mortgaged with the various commercial banks to get cash loans. When banks prepared the mortgage documents, the valuation of the said lands were got registered as on the ‘market rate’ which brought billions of loans against those lots.

The billions of cash had been converted into dollars and had been sent to Dubai banks. After a year or so when the banks would ask for loan payment, they would be told to get hold of the lands.

WHERE DOES PAKISTAN STAND?

May be disturbing for many....

On 5th November 2015; there were 22 slides from Flicker / Manal Khan at //msn.com; appeared under caption:

22 Unhealthiest - Unhappiest - Poorest - and

Most Unsafe Countries on Earth

At sl no:13 for PAKISTAN it narrated:

“Despite having fairly good scores for both Economy [?] and Entrepreneurship, Pakistan ranked as one of the FIVE most unsafe countries on earth. It has dropped three places from 127th to 130th this year.”

I pasted the above information on my FB page. Tens of comments poured in; all more or less pointing towards the same ills and evils then prevailing in Pakistan. Members of the mid-order educated class and intelligentsia were seen more disturbed.

Some of the excerpts are placed below verbatim – just feel the stink in between the lines for a state which was being governed in the name of Islam and Democracy but with utterly opposing definitions & interpretations made by corrupt political rulers and their stooge team members of bureaucrats and advisors.

Javed Nizam I think poor governance and corruption with ineffective judicial system have destroyed this beautiful and resourceful country.

Like · Reply 

Sheikh Awais [Nikky - now moved to States] My dear Sehri, when everyone is making money nd improving the quality of life by hook or crook, who is bothered for others. Bureaucracy, Army or Civil have excelled in their efforts for the past so many years. The politicians are plunderers par excellence and poor have been starving since their birth, living in squatters nd dungeons, much beyond low poverty level, having no health facility.

Values have deteriorated much below any standards of morality that in big cities meat of Donkeys, Boars, and even dogs has been sold at shops nd restaurants nd Nihari shops. No culprit has been punished – [astonishing].

Judiciary is not worth the praise, equally corrupt. Rape, theft, fraud and dacoity are rampant and is way of life for all. They are symbols for being powerful. Everybody emulates a wadera. Throwing of Acid is a routine matter for not succumbing to ulterior desires of Wehshi and Darindas. Every body can go Scot Free by doing anything – [how can it be Islamic or democratic].

Land mafias nd drug mafias are the law makers. Dharnas are staged by huge funds coming from sources not known to common man. Mullahism is at its peak. You can get away with any Fatwa after killing hundreds of innocent people under the garb of Jehad, Ghazi or Shaheed…...

PM nd CMs are protecting the terrorists. The whole society is full of Gulloo Butts nd hand picked DMG officers are willing to do as the masters want them to do for measly little postings. Money is the name of the game. All of our batchmates [1975 CSS /3RD Common Training] have made huge bucks nd tons of money, some are in the hiding in your country, Canada and USA.

You may recall that in my Honda 50 cc even petrol use to come to an end within 10 to 15 days of my salary. Some of our closest friends have been a great disappointment. May Allah put the astray nation to a right path…..the poor have suffered a lot much beyond our imagination.

This is not a quality nation…..you can’t expect miracles from them. This is bound to deteriorate even further when Rich are getting Richer nd now investing in Dubai, not just in Defence or Clifton..We compare things with India no other country as a model. Gone are those days, my dear.

Like · Reply

Inam R Sehri Sh Sb; really thought provoking sentiments and all facts you have narrated. I’ll beg permission to quote some of these phrases in some coming up essay on media. If allowed.

Like Show More Reactions

· Reply · 6 November 2015 at 17:26

Sheikh Awais By all means, I can give you names of bureaucrats also
 Like Show More Reactions
 Reply · 7 November 2015 at 03:43

Tahsin Iqbal Very painful, but what else can we expect from others to pass such judgement about our beloved country whose leaders have been exceedingly inept and incompetent, corrupt to core, shamelessly selfish, senseless, devoid of any vision and because of their worsening poor governance the society, at large, is also fast degenerating into a heartless conglomeration of nationalities and communities.

Like · Reply

I endorsed all the above views AND there was not an iota of doubt; no point to disagree with any on the given narrations. Most nationalists and patriots could see a ‘falling country’ but were helpless before the tyranny of their rulers. 

PAKISTAN RANKED 83rd OUT OF 102:

On 26th March 2015 – The World Justice Project [WJP] released the WJP Open Government Index 2015, the first effort to measure government openness based on the general public’s experiences and perceptions.

According to the Index, Pakistan’s overall score placed it at 5th out of 6 countries in the South Asia region; 19th out of 25 among lower middle income countries; and 83rd out of 102 countries worldwide. The top overall performer in the Index 2015 was Sweden, the bottom performer was Zimbabwe. In the South Asia region, the top performer was India; the bottom performer was Afghanistan.

Scoring for the WJP Open Government Index 2015 was derived from more than 100,000 household surveys and in-country expert questionnaires. The index covered a total of 102 countries and jurisdictions, and was organized around four dimensions:

• publicized laws and government data,

• right to information,

• right to petition and citizen participation, and

• Complaint mechanisms.

Pakistan’s highest-ranking dimension was “Civic Participation” [66th out of 102 countries]; its lowest-ranking dimension was “Publicized Laws and Government Data” [94th out of 102 countries].

The WJP’s index 2015 tracked the experiences of ordinary people as they used to request information from the government. In Pakistan, 20% of households said they were aware of such laws. Of the 11% of respondents who requested information from the government, only 69% reported receiving it—of those, 59% were unsatisfied with the process. An expert view of most jurists was:

“Government openness is vital for both the government and the governed.

Openness helps improve public service delivery, promotes government legitimacy, and encourages citizens to collaborate with their government and monitor its performance.”

BUT in Pakistan who bothers for such ‘tiny things’…..

Before his departure from London on 16th December 2017, Nawaz Sharif announced that he would spearhead a movement for the rule of law and supremacy of the Constitution in the country. See a report from international media telling truth about ‘RULE OF LAW’ in his peak 3rd term of premiership:

On 18th November 2015; another report of World Justice Project [WJP], was released but it covered only one aspect - Rule of Law in 102 countries. The report stated that:

“Pakistan’s ranking is 98/102; Pakistan, with score index of 38/100, has been placed at number 98 out of 102 countries. Its regional rank is 5/6; at number 5 in a list of six regional countries.”

Only four countries of the world were found with lower index than Pakistan; Zimbabwe with index of 37/100; Cambodia with index of 37/100; Afghanistan with index 35/100 and Venezuela with index of 32/100.

Even countries like Ethiopia, Zambia, India, Sri Lanka and Tanzania were shown having better performance. New Zealand, Norway, Denmark and Netherlands were placed at the top with rating index of 83-87/100.

In deciding the ranks, adherence was assessed using 44 indicators organized around eight themes:

• Constraints on Government Powers,

• Absence of Corruption,

• Open Government,

• Fundamental Rights,

• Order & Security,

• Regulatory Enforcement,

• Civil Justice, and

• Criminal Justice.

The dissection of the scoring brought the following picture.
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The study was completed in three big cities named Karachi, Lahore and Faisalabad even then the index remained at 38/100. It is apprehended that if the rural areas be included in the study, the overall index for Pakistan might have slipped to Zero/100.

The WJP claimed that the Index relied on over 100,000 households and 2,400 expert surveys to measure adherence to the rule of law. It is the most comprehensive index of its kind and the only one to rely solely on primary data.

Bill Gates, Co-chair and Trustee of Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation commented that:

“If you want to improve the rule of law, you need a way to measure it.

The WJP’s Rule of Law Index helps the global community by doing just that - helping transform the global conversation about the rule of law, and in doing so, providing a new source of knowledge that can improve lives everywhere.”

ON [BAD] GOVERNANCE IN PAKISTAN:

ONE of the definitions of governance is:

‘……to establish policies [and rules] and continuous monitoring of their proper implementation by the members of the governing body [government] of an organisation [country].’

In Pakistan, however, governments announce policies and make rules and then encourage its cronies to devise ways and itself provide means to counter the same policies and circumvent the rules through procedural gimmicks.

Policies are made in every sector, such as health, education, trade etc, then are announced with fanfare but no one bothers about their implementation; the whole nation follows the status quo and go by ad-hoc strategy till another policy comes up next year because a new minister wants to have his own moment of fame.

When policy announcements don’t work and criticism mounts, some high-visibility projects are floated with attractive labels of development. No effort is made to fix the system, because it will involve taking on the mafias in organisations, upsetting the forces of status quo and blocking their incomes through corruption and allied vices.

See the crying crowds’ painful voice appeared through a retired federal secretary’s essay in daily the ‘DAWN’ dated 21st October 2015:

“Rather than fix existing government schools, which are in thousands, we [Pakistan governments and rogue bureaucrats] show the dream of an Aitchison College in every district and build a few billion-rupee schools of doubtful quality for a handful of students.

Rather than fix the police force, we come up with the ‘Elite Force’, ‘Rapid Response Force’, ‘Mujahid Force’ etc. And when that does not work, we bring in more ‘reforms’.

Rather than fix the bureaucracy by stopping political interference, handing back the powers to heads of departments, we sign impressive-sounding agreements with donor agencies including the World Bank and UNDP, and promise more high-sounding reforms, with the collateral advantage of lucrative consultancies and foreign trips.

Rather than fix the public transport system for the whole city, we line one route, out of 40 or 50 routes, with gold by spending billions per kilometre and paying a subsidy of millions a day, to benefit not more than 5pc of commuters [Metro-bus & Orange Train Projects are referred].

Rather than improve the performance of our existing municipal sweepers, we get companies from abroad to pick the garbage for us and pay them additional $45 million a year for their ‘supervision’ alone. We further buy them $60m worth of vehicles to clean the streets for us with the help of our old municipal sweepers [PPP’s plans in Karachi are referred].

Rather than catch the electricity thieves or perform the mundane task of renovating existing distribution infrastructure to reduce technical line losses, or fix the problems of existing power plants, we go for high-profile [rental] power plants knowing full well that it will increase the circular debt even more.

Rather than build dams and utilise God-given resources — because it takes six to eight years to build these and that is beyond one’s tenure of political office — we establish expensive projects in cities, where visibility is at its highest. We complete these projects in 11 months to show our effectiveness, regardless of the fact that it may cost the exchequer three times the normal price.

Rather than take on the masterminds, handlers and financiers of terrorism, we normally prefer to have them on our right side, unless our arm is twisted by the forces we can’t say no to.

Rather than control population growth [Bangladesh had more people than Pakistan in 1971 and now has 160 million while we have around 230 million], we would much prefer to take the ‘politically correct’ route of not annoying the clergymen and not even talking about the problem.

Rather than concentrate on across-the-board tax collection as we have one of the lowest tax collection rates in the world, we would much prefer to borrow as much as possible from our own banks and in the process crowd out local entrepreneurs, and then go to international markets to borrow at rates foreign markets can’t resist.

The lack of state efforts to collect taxes is actually a blessing in disguise for the people, because resultantly they are rich while the government is poor. As a result, when the state can’t provide clean drinking water, the public develops its own bottled water industry. When the state can’t provide security, private security companies flourish and in the process provide unintended employment. When the state cannot provide power, the public imports a billion dollars’ worth of small generators every year, to stay comfortable and run their businesses.

Rather than think of the future of the country we continue playing politics for our short-term gains; the future of children of Pakistani rulers is not linked to the country as they are already settled in Dubai, USA & United Kingdom.

Pakistan Steel Mills Affairs: Pakistan Steel Mills [PSM], the country’s largest industrial unit, had suffered a cumulative loss of about Rs:100 billion since its controversial sale was cancelled by CJP Iftikhar M Chaudhry in 2006 till 31st August 2013. Its overall liabilities had gone beyond Rs:110 billion in seven years.

A summary considered by the Economic Coordination Committee [ECC] of the new PML[N] government contained that:

“……the PSM arrived at the present state due to unchecked corruption, inefficiency, over-employment and the government’s lukewarm attitude towards its revival. The unbroken series of losses started from the year 2008-09, when PSM suffered a Rs:26.45 billion operating loss”.

PSM needed at least Rs:30 billion in September 2013 for a little improvement so it could be privatised, or else it could be liquidated after the budget dole-out of Rs:40 billion in clearance of its liabilities. Business as usual was estimated at the cost of Rs:60 billion during next 15 months.

Since 2009 till 2013, the PSM secured Rs:40 billion in bailout packages, but the situation went on getting from bad to worse. The root cause was bad governance, involving corruption, mismanagement, nepotism, political interference and over employment.

COMING BACK to governance; during the FIVE years of the PPP rule, the power sector in the public domain had eaten up over Rs:2 trillion. The degree of power and other energy shortages reached unprecedented levels, and its impact on economic growth was estimated at about 4 percent, as per various studies by macro-economists. Reasons being the same as described earlier including appointments at key positions on political considerations and inefficiencies.

Pakistan suffered more than $6 billion [Rs:600 billion] in extra payments on account of furnace oil imports, as it failed to complete arrangements for the import of Liquefied Natural Gas [LNG] since a controversial deal was scrapped by the Supreme Court over allegations of corruption and violation of rules and regulations. The losses to the economy on this account were manifold.

Apart from bad governance, the lack of clear vision and lust for personal financial gains triggered the bypassing of rules and best business practices of transparency and fair play.

Pakistan International Airlines [PIA]; sign of the country’s pride in the skies, was eating up tens of billions of rupees every year, and during mid 2013 it was fighting for another Rs:20 billion fresh injection.

In the documents of the World Bank, effectiveness was hampered by the political nepotism, frail administrative capacity, weak provincial governments and 160 years old justice system. Efficiency was constrained by the state’s inability to mobilise revenue and manage resources well.

SPENDINGS – ILL PLANNED:

Accountability was undermined by lack of transparency, selective jurisdictions and allowing for corruption and manipulation of rules. Broad-based anti-corruption strategy could not be coined even in decades.

The findings pointed to serious failings in governance and the institutionalisation of corruption in Pakistan. For example, the Legatum Institute’s prosperity index, on the basis of 90 indicators, ranked Pakistan at 132 among a total of 142 countries it covered. India was ranked at 101, Indonesia at 63, Bangladesh at 102, Cambodia at 107, and even Nepal at 108. Among the eight categories of the index, Pakistan ranked 121 in governance – democracy hurrey.

Improvement of governance structure was the basic requirement across the public domain, from legislation to judicial implementation and policy objective. Hence, the governance reform agenda was needed; wide and substantial — starting from the parliament to election commission and going down the judicial ladder and towards transparency in political parties.

The Auditor General of Pakistan, the public procurement regulatory authority, Ombudsman offices, National Accountability Bureau [NAB], and regulatory authorities kept on sleeping over the day by day deteriorating performance; where the induction of people was not based on merit selection but nepotism.

Here is an analysis of mid 2015 titled as ‘Pakistan - Defense Spending’ given by world known American sponsored media site globalsecurity.org;

‘Pakistan announced on 5th June 2015 that it would increase its military spending by 11% for fiscal year 2015-16 - from Rs:700 billion [US$ 7 billion] to Rs:780 billion [US$ 7.8 billion].

For the year 2014-15, Rs:1,325 billion were kept for the debt servicing and Rs:1,175 billion for Public Sector Development [PSDP]; the first and 2nd largest chunks respectively.’

About 53% of Pakistan’s budget goes to IMF and other lending consortiums as ‘interest of loans’ – but still Pakistani rulers feel pride in taking foreign loans…..shameful.

After lavish foreign tours of rulers and ‘pay & allowances’ of government servants what is left for 200 million people.

Rs:364m a year for Jati Umra’s Security:

Referring to daily the ‘Pakistan Today’ dated 11th November 2015;

The Punjab government released Rs:364.4 million for the Sharif family’s security in the Jati Umra near Lahore. These expenses were in addition to the funds already specified in the budget for the security of Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif; his brother, Punjab Chief Minister Shahbaz Sharif; and their families.

In the wake of [self concocted] threats to the Sharif family, intelligence agencies and the Punjab Communication & Works Department had held a secret audit which revealed that their security was unsatisfactory and that terrorists could take advantage of the weaknesses to attack them.

The Punjab government immediately released:

• Rs:283.2m for erecting a 4.4-kilometre fence, ninety CCTV cameras, 100 LED lights to be installed and 20 elevated checkpoints set up.

• Rs:197.2m to set up the fence and checkpoints, while Rs:86m on purchase of security equipment.

• Rs:27.1m for paying the police employees appointed for the Sharif family’s security.

• Rs:54m to purchase 14 vehicles for the security squad of CM Shahbaz [the vehicles were already purchased in September – only payment was made then].

• 2,751 police officials were appointed for the security of PM Nawaz, the CM and their families.

• Forty-four [44] officials of the Punjab police were performing duties for ‘co-ordination among various security points’ while sitting at the PM House in Islamabad.

The said 44 officials were assigned the duties of chief coordinators of security; CM’s squad at Islamabad & Rawalpindi; CM Office GOR-1; Banquet Hall, 90 Shahrah Quaid-e-Azam Lahore; CM residence, 96-H Model Town Lahore; CM residence DHA Lahore; PM residence Jati Umrah Raiwind Lahore; squad Hamza Shahbaz; squad Mrs Nusrat Shahbaz; squad Salman Shahbaz and family; squad Mian Imran Ali Yousaf; squad Begum Tehmina Shahbaz 51-A Judicial Colony Lahore and Punjab House; CM Secretariat GOR-1, 108-H Model Town; and CM Secretariat at Jati Umrah.

These 2,751 police officials included 2,087 law enforcers working under CCPO Lahore, 169 officials of Punjab Constabulary, 44 from Rawalpindi police, nine from Bhakkar, 62 from traffic police, 33 VVIP security officials of special branch, 88 of special branch and 75 private security officials from various corners.

Federal interior ministry was moved to make further arrangements for PM Nawaz Shrif in the wake of the same security threats.

On 8th October 2015; Public Accounts Committee [PAC] of the Parliament was chaired by Syed Khurshid Shah which examined the FBR audit report for 2010-11.

It was a mockery of the system that PPP’s Syed Khurshid Shah, the Leader of Opposition in NA, was reviewing the audit report of 2010-11 which had the audit objections on ‘irregular spending’ during PPP’s own government – just to clear it, shelve it and to make the Pakistani people fool once more in the name of democratic process.

A CJP + HIS CORRUPT SON:

Iftikhar M Chaudhry, Chief Justice of Pakistan, was retired in December 2013. He launched his new political party in Pakistan in December 2015 on Qaid’s day eve. In his interview with Syed Talat Hussain at GEO TV on 26th December 2015, the CJP replied a question that ‘….his son Arsalan Iftikhar is and has been very honest an upright.’

After that interview, I [Inam R Sehri] placed my feelings on the FACEBOOK referring to my [then] recent 400 pages book, ‘The Living History of Pakistan’ Vol-I, printed in UK which had appeared in the market just a week earlier to that interview [available on www.inamsehri.com], two complete chapters no: 100 & 101, pages 1619-1650, wherein Dr Arsalan’s case had been discussed in detail.

I [the author] asked the audience to spare some moments to go through those pages and to correct me where I was wrong – NOT a single person was there to disagree with me. What I got in response is placed below verbatim:

Dear Mr. Sehri,

I will go through the relevant pages and then I will give my opinion. I also along with one friend watched that program. My own understanding being a lawyer and past events I believe Mr Ch. was completely lying which was evident from his body language also responded by MR. Talat Hussain.

But I don’t think he is so important that to waste time discussing him or his talented son, he has used his positions again and again to benefit him and his son Mr. Arslan from his admission in medical college to his induction in interior ministry…..

Hope you will not mind if there is any conflict of opinion.

Ansar Mahmood Jaspal (The Solicitor)

Legal Affairs & Risk Management at

Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital & Research 
Lahore. [26.12.2015]

Sir! U r nowhere wrong bcs Mr. Iftikhar Ch is himself leading mafia where innocent public suffered for justice ..... I’m direct victim of this system n directly talked to him in Supreme Court when he was CJ. Even his friends n colleagues r also part of mafia.

Ailya Hina Advo HC SIALKOT

Sehri Sb,

I have not read your book, but I can say from my own knowledge that both father and son are chips of the same stinking lock.

Anis Bajwa

Advisory Group of Experts on Peace-building at United Nations

With due respect the former Crook CJP Iftikhar Ch got his Son matter hushed up and force Judges to give his Son Clean Chit: Time will tell how much damage Ex CJP Iftikhar has done to the Judiciary and Pakistan if History is written Honestly.

Azhar Ali Khan -

Attorney at Law / Senior Legal Counsel at law firm

[29th December 2015]

Inam Sab! You are right and his honesty is same as Iblees claims to be Muslim. Woh jo Allah ko manta hai aur Allah ki nahin manta...Iblees.... Arsalan cases are much more than what are open to public. God bless sir.

Iftikhar Naqvi

Executive Administration at Fatima Group Pakistan

[29th December 2015]

Since the book has been launched, therefore at this moment I can’t do anything, some of my acquaintance now a retired officer audited the accounts of funds utilized by ex CJ, He observed misappropriations in many things. He told that Musharraf was bad luck n rather timings were inappropriate for his accountability.

Further a house in Quetta belongs to Jaffrey Sahib I may b wrong with his name with whom Rtd CJ practiced as his junior managed to transfer on his name. Jaffrey’s daughter who is Assistant professor in University can verify that.

Regarding his son every body knows, no body will trust him. I am sorry if I hurt your feelings. Stay blessed. 

Muhammad Hassan Mangi

Director General Human Rights at Government of Pakistan

Apathy of Pakistan’s political elite:

In early December 2015, steps were taken towards punishing the sexual abuse of girls with life imprisonment or even death, after an influential Parliamentary Committee voted to amend current laws. The National Assembly’s standing committee had approved the proposal by lawmaker Shaista Perveiz Malik; then it travelled through the NA and then Senate then to the PM Secretariat and finally to the President successfully.

But the tragedy remained that the said amendment proposal was only to address the sexual abuse of girls aged under-14, not girls and ladies of above 14 years age or in cases of sodomy.

What a pity – how many rape cases were reported for below 14 years aged girls – hardly one in decades. Pakistan’s Parliamentarians were either the goofs of highest order or top criminal conspirators.

SC STANDS BY ARMY For National Cause:

In 182-pages decision penned down on 29th August 2016, the Supreme Court [SC] rejected all appeals against convictions handed down by military courts, including capital punishment, in terrorism-related cases.

The convicted, including Qari Zubair, Haider Ali, Qari Zahir Gul, Taj Mohammad, Atteeq-ur-Rehman, Akhtar Mahmood, Fateh Mohammad, Sher Alam, Mohammad Arabi and others, were found guilty of involvement in the Army Public School Attack in Peshawar, Parade Line bombing in Rawalpindi, the Bannu jailbreak and attacks on army convoys and installations.

Chief of Army Staff [COAS] Gen Raheel Sharif had already rejected appeals of the 16 convicted in military courts. The decision marked its first time the highest court ruled on the legality of cases tried by the military.

A five-member bench had reserved its decision on 16 petitions on 20th June 2016, headed by CJP Anwar Z Jamali and comprised of Justice Amir Hani Muslim, Justice Sheikh Azmat Saeed, Justice Manzoor Ahmed Malik and Justice Faisal Arab.

The SC bench ruled that the appellants had not proved the military violated their constitutional rights or failed to follow procedure, in a blow to some activists who contended the military courts routinely violate people’s rights.

The counsel for the convicted had complained that their clients did not receive a fair trial, nor were they allowed to choose their counsel; the SC turned down the counsel’s plea as wrong. The decision observed that:

“Neither the order passed by the Field General Court Martial [military court] is a case of no evidence nor is the evidence led by the prosecution insufficient. There is sufficient material available to prove the guilt of the appellants.”

Asma Jahangir had appealed the SC to order retrial in all cases in which military courts handed down convictions. She had complained that the full record of the evidence had not been made available to the accused. She also regretted that her clients had been arrested under the Action [In Aid of Civil Power] Regulation 2011 [AACPR] before military courts were established, but their cases were sent to military courts.

[Earlier, on 16th February 2016; the SC had sought complete record from the military court pertaining to the trial of four death-row prisoners who were awarded death sentences for their alleged involvement in different terrorist activities, including facilitating the APS Peshawar carnage on 16th December 2014, killing over 153, mostly children.

A three-member bench of the apex court, headed by J Sh Azmat Saeed, resumed hearing in the appeals filed by family members of the four accused convicted by the military court. The court on 9th February had stayed till 16th February, the execution of four persons — Taj Muhammad, Aliur Rehman, Qari Muhammad Zubair and Muhammad Imran; the most dangerous.

Taj Muhammad and Aliur Rehman were convicted by the military courts for facilitating the deadly attack on the APS. Qari Zubair was awarded death sentence for his involvement in a blast in a mosque in Nowshera while M Imran was convicted of firing on a check post in Bajaur Agency wherein eight people, including six army personnel, had embraced martyrdom.

In pursuance of the court’s last order, Attorney General [AG] Salman Aslam Butt, had submitted before the court that appeals filed by three convicts with the military authorities were dismissed while appeal of M Imran was yet to be decided. Declaring the matter sensitive, J Azmat Saeed didn’t allow further adjournment and called the complete record of the trial court for 23rd February instant.

Abdul Latif Afridi and Khalid Anwar Afridi, counsels for the convicts, appeared before the court. One M Ayaz, the real brother of convict Imran, had moved the SC against an order of the Peshawar High Court. In his petition before the PHC, M Ayaz had questioned the conviction and death sentence awarded to his brother Imran by the military court was without any notice and knowledge and without giving him an option to produce evidence in his defence.]

The government had empowered military courts to try civilian terrorism suspects in January 2015, following an attack by Pakistani Taliban militants on Army Public School in Peshawar. Till that day of August 2016; the military courts had convicted 104 civilians; of those, 100 were sentenced to death, and four to life imprisonment.

Lawyers for all 16 convicts contended their clients had been tried in secret, without access to legal counsel of their choice, and that their confessions had been recorded illegally. They also claimed they were denied access to military court records when preparing their appeals. Several alleged that confessions were coerced by the military.

Sajid Ilyas Bhatti, the Deputy Attorney General representing the government, however, denied the appellants’ claims. He argued that military court proceedings were “immune from challenge on the ground of any alleged violation of the fundamental rights”.

Meanwhile, the parents & family members of 153 children and teachers from APS Peshawar cursed, abused and raised their high voices against those senior lawyers representing the 16 convicts asking them that they also want justice.

The parents urged the government and army to investigate that who paid the hefty fees of the lawyers to fight the cases of Taliban and other terrorists. It was considered necessary to trace out that who people paid the fees, which country or religious groups sponsored the appeals thus financed the terrorism in Pakistan.

In its 182-page judgment, the SC bench concluded that the appellants failed to prove wrongdoing on the part of the military authorities.

FACTS From CIA Files:

Referring to Mazhar Abbas’s essay appeared in daily ‘the News’ dated 1st February 2017; that according to the CIA’s declassified documents relating to Pakistan, Sheikh Mujeebur-Rehman and Zulfikar Ali Bhutto were responsible for the disintegration of Pakistan which gave birth to Bangladesh – and not the former military ruler Gen Yahya Khan as had been a prevailing perception. The CIA documents had also given details about the role of India, US and Soviet Union in the said crisis.

While the elections in 1970 were held for the Constituent Assembly to frame the Constitution, the then civil and military establishment never wanted Constitution based on Mujeeb’s six points and thus the National Assembly session was not called in Dhaka by Gen Yahya when Mujeeb’s party had won 163 seats, thus a majority, in the National Assembly.

Zulfikar Bhutto was accused of rigging the 1977 elections and Gen Ziaul Haq held him responsible for the bloodshed during PNA movement. Mr Bhutto, on the other hand, had blamed America and CIA’s role in the coup because of his decision to make ‘Islamic Bomb’. He was told by none other than the US Secretary of State Henry Kissinger that if he did not abandon the programme, ‘he would be made a horrible example’.

Once Mr Bhutto was released on bail after being kept under detention by Gen Zia, he got massive reception in Lahore and as a result was re-arrested. Elections, which were due on 18th October 1977, were postponed for an indefinite period. Gen Zia then approached Ahmad Raza Kasuri through his trusted intelligence officer to pursue the trial of his father’s murder who was killed in the PPP era.

While the CIA documents revealed that Zia had told that he was under pressure from the army, some retired officers showed dissent at the senior level, while junior officers were against the execution. Dr Abdul Qadeer Khan, an architect of Pakistan’s nuclear bomb, tried to save Mr Bhutto whom he described as a ‘true nationalist’ and added that:

“I was worried when I started getting reports that Gen Zia has taken the decision to hang him. I made a secret visit to Turkey and met the President of Turkey. I pleaded him that the Islamic world needs Bhutto and he should use his influence on Zia. The president appreciated my concern and said he would call Zia, but also warned me that he would not spare him as he is scared of him.”

Gen Zia was scared that if he spared Mr Bhutto, it would be difficult for him to keep him in jail for long. The then interim PM Ghulam Mustafa Jatoi also disclosed his meeting with Gen Zia [wherein Lt Gen KM Arif was also present] in which Mr Bhutto had assured Gen Zia that he [Mr Bhutto] with the family would go into exile and quit politics for many years if the General spared him. However, “Bhutto’s execution was a tragedy for Pakistan.”

The CIA files also revealed that Benazir Bhutto had told Americans before power being handed to her in 1988 that she had compromised and would not interfere in foreign policy or the nuclear programme being run by Pak-Army. For that compromise with the establishment the former ISI chief, Lt Gen Hamid Gul had once told:

“It is true that the military establishment was concerned about Benazir Bhutto and I took the initiative to get the opposition on one platform as we wanted to bring a check and balance. Fear was that she could be vindictive against those who had been associated with Gen Zia and could take revenge. Later, I regretted and even confessed this to Ms Benazir Bhutto.

I met her and gave a briefing on Afghan war and Pakistan’s position. To be very honest, I found her a true nationalist and she did not have any venom against army.”

BB always had apprehensions about President Ghulam Ishaq Khan, Gen Aslam Baig and Gen Hamid Gul; on 6th August 1990 her government was sacked. The Asghar Khan Case [for details see ‘The Living History of Pakistan Vol-I’ Scenario 102 pps 1651-77 [2015] GHP Surrey UK] established how IJI was funded through Mehran Bank and money distributed among her opponents.

The Supreme Court later declared the 1990 elections as ‘rigged’ and ordered the FIA to initiate action against those who had distributed money and those who had taken that money. The FIA was given the deadline of 31st December 2015, to complete the probe, but surprisingly, its report was never made public.

Zulfi Bhutto was executed and Benazir Bhutto assassinated at a time when they were at the peak of their popularity. Irrespective of their politics and mistakes, the fact remained that they were nationalist and patriotic.

UK Providing ‘Safe Abode’ to Pak-Dissidents: National Security Adviser [NSA] Lt Gen (rtd) Nasser Janjua, while meeting a delegation of the British Parliament visiting Pakistan on 4th April 2017, said that the United Kingdom was “unfortunately choosing individuals” over its relationship with the state.

Gen Janjua was speaking with reference to Muttahida Qaumi Movement [MQM] leader Altaf Hussain as well as 13 Baloch leaders who had found a ‘safe abode’ in the UK. The response from the General came when the seven-member delegation discussed various issues and challenges both countries faced, including Hussain’s self-imposed exile, Pakistan’s relationship with India and the Kashmir dispute.

Gen Janjua apprised the foreign diplomats “at length about the rise of extremism, the conflicts in the Muslim world and the rise of Daesh.”

Regarding India, Gen Janjua explained to the delegation “how [fast] the fragile security architecture of the region is getting burdened and how it has started to suffer from serious imbalance”. UK could have adopted a balanced regional approach with its diplomatic relations.

ON FATA REFORMS:

During the last week of August 2016; the report of the Committee on Fata Reforms, was made public via the website of the Ministry of States and Frontier Regions [Safron] Pakistan. The committee was set up in November 2015 and the completion of its report within 10 months was quite creditable. Headed by Adviser Sartaj Aziz, the committee held consultations with the maliks and elders in the tribal agencies, and “representatives of all political parties and other members of the civil society, including traders, media representatives, and youth”.

The FATA reforms were originally compiled by PPP’s Gen Naseerullah Babar in 1976 which would have succeeded had the military coup of July 1977 not occurred. There were ‘extension of adult franchise to Fata’ in 1996; ‘extension of the Local Government Ordinance’ in 2002; the Sahibzada Imtiaz Ahmad report of 2006; the Fata Sustainable Development Plan of 2006; justice Ajmal Mian’s report of 2008; the Shaheed Bhutto Foundation Report of 2008; the Political Parties’ Joint Commission Report of 2013; and the report of the Governor’s Fata Reform Commission of 2015 - all these efforts sought to reform the FCR – BUT it still stands there.

Referring to the daily ‘Dawn’ dated 12th November 2015; serious difference surfaced among the Federally Administered Tribal Areas [FATA] parliamentarians as a group of six independent MsNA requested the speaker of National Assembly to defer the [then] 22nd Amendment Bill, which was about the merger of tribal areas with Khyber PK province.

The request was made after the federal government announced formation of a five-member committee to recommend suggestions regarding future status of FATA and reforms in the existing governance system of the tribal belt and nearby region.

The six independent tribal MsNAs agreed to withdraw the candidature of Dr Ghazi Gulab Jamal, a member of the group, who had earlier filed his nomination papers for the post of speaker against the PML[N] nominee Sardar Ayaz Sadiq. MNA Haji Shahji Gul told the media:

“The formation of a high-powered committee by the federal government is the biggest achievement of FATA parliamentarians in their six decades of parliamentary history. Keeping in view formation of the said committee I, being parliamentary leader of the six independent tribal parliamentarians, requested the speaker to defer the proposed 22nd Amendment Bill till the committee presents its recommendations to National Assembly.”

MNA Gul also said that the purpose of deferring the bill, which they had been vehemently perusing for acceptance for debate in National Assembly, was to make it more acceptable by incorporating recommendations of the committee, headed by Sartaj Aziz, adviser to the PM on foreign affairs.

However, MNA from Bajaur Shahabuddin Khan was disappointed with the decision to defer the proposed bill. He held that:

“The move of independent MsNA was a huge embarrassment for the people of tribal area. ….that a historic opportunity regarding determining the future status of Fata is lost owing to an ‘immature and untimely’ decision by a group of tribal lawmakers.

He along with other MsNA and activists of civil society from FATA had worked very hard to garner the much needed support of almost all the mainstream political parties for the smooth sailing of the proposed bill in both houses of the parliament.”

Meanwhile, Haji Shahji Gul and his five other colleagues in National Assembly distanced themselves from the protest rally organised by FATA Siyasi Ettehad [FSE] at D-Chowk in Islamabad on 16th November 2015. He urged that they were never taken into confidence by the leadership of FATA Siyasi Ettehad about the planned protest rally.

FSE senior leader Akhunzada Chattan disputed Mr Shahji Gul’s contention and said that all important decisions regarding tabling of the bill and holding of the protest rally were taken after consultation with all the MsNA from FATA of which Haji Shahji Gul was an integral part.

The Sartaj Aziz ministerial Committee proposed that the “jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of Pakistan and the Peshawar High Court should be extended to Fata”.

The major voice was that the whole FATA be made part of the Khyber PK province so that all schemes of health & hospitals, schools and colleges, roads network, water supply and sewerage, housing and policing etc could equally be implemented as in the other districts and sub-division of the KPK province.

BUT the internal politics of the ‘nominated’ MsNA, or Maliks who often live in Islamabad and Karachi but get the seats with connivance of BIGs in the political parties – and then allegedly sell their vote in the Parliament for undue favours – played once again and the issue pushed into the sand-grave of corruption.

The PM Nawaz Sharif and in later months, PM Shahid Khaqan Abbasi both were inclined to move the amendment / approval in the parliament but only two persons named MAULANA FAZLUR REHMAN and ACHAKZAI always obstructed the way of the bill – and PML[N] proved itself as puppet in the hands of the two members.

The FATA matter still stands in dejection, depression and despai;

It is the first dawn of 2018 now.

Inam R Sehri

Manchester UK

12th January 2018



Scenario 186

MODEL AYYAN ALI’s CASE
  PAKI JUDICIARY: CORRUPT OR IMPOTENT?



On 14th March 2015; one model girl named Ayyan Ali was arrested by customs officials from Islamabad Airport after $508,000 were recovered from her possession.

The 21-year-old supermodel, who had been staying in Dubai with her mother, was in Islamabad during the Senate elections. As she put her suitcase in the scanning machine, the ASF officials spotted a large sum of foreign currency notes inside. As a result, she was stopped from travelling abroad from any outlet.

Shortly afterwards, Mr Zardari’s PA, who was accompanying the model, contacted the brother [Khalid Malik] of former federal minister of Interior [Rehman Malik] who also reached the airport to rescue her. Khalid Malik also tried to meet the customs officers but went unsuccessful and was advised to stay away.

AYYAN ALI: PPP’s BLUE EYED GIRL:

Later, the former federal minister Rehman Malik allegedly contacted the customs authorities and tried to convince them that Ayyan was innocent and should be allowed to travel abroad but his efforts also proved unproductive. The customs authorities registered a case against the supermodel for trying to smuggle the amount out of the country and detained her.

[As news of model Ayyan Ali’s arrest from Islamabad airport for smuggling $506,800 made rounds, the ‘Express Tribune’ of the same day, 14th March 2015, compiled a list of 8 things one needed to know about her.

1) Despite being widely called Ayyan Ali by the media, the model never agreed to Ali as a surname.

2) Ayyan Ali modelled for prominent brands, including Magnum, Bareeze, Gul Ahmed, Ufone, Sunsilk and Sania Maskatiya lawn. The supermodel was also out with a scarf for the Sunsilk hijab campaign.

3) She has been one of the highest-paid models of the fashion industry in Pakistan.

4) The supermodel debuted in the fashion world in 2010 and was present in the fashion world till February 2014.

5) Initially, a Lahore-based model, she moved to Karachi subsequently.

6) Ayyan Ali could never win a Lux Style award, despite being nominated four times.

7) Ayyan Ali lately moved to Europe, where she was working a new career in music. She ventured into singing in 2014 with her famous song ‘You and I.’

8) At one time, fashion designer Deepak Perwani was considered her close friend.]

The arrest of fashion-model Ayyan Ali, for trying to smuggle more than half a million US dollars, was a classic case of the rich and influential avoid paying taxes.

As per the State Bank of Pakistan’s [SBP] foreign exchange regulation, a passenger cannot carry more than $10,000, or the equivalent notes of another currency, out of the country.

Same day; the model was sent on 14-day judicial remand to Adiala jail. Further, same day, a special customs court admitted a plea seeking Ayyan Ali’s bail. She was set to board an Emirates airline to Dubai and according to Airport Security Force did not declare that she was carrying a large sum of money. Ayyan told that she had recently moved to Europe where she was taking up a new career in music.

Up until 1991, Pakistanis were not allowed to maintain foreign currency accounts, and the movement of foreign exchange was prohibited. However, during the economic liberalisation programme of Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif’s first government in 1992, those Pakistanis who wanted to park their funds abroad, were made eligible to take happy decisions.

Businessmen, politicians and smugglers ‘invested’ billions in real estate and other assets in Middle East markets. The outflow went on until Pakistan tested its nuclear devices in May 1998, and subsequent international restrictions led to a freeze on withdrawals of foreign currency.

Ayyan Ali has been travelling frequently between Europe and the UAE for the past years, where she was pursuing a career in modelling and music; she had not featured in Pakistan’s domestic fashion showcase since April 2014 being sufficiently expensive.

[Under the said 1992 rules – still in vogue - offshore transactions require account holders to not just go through the bank’s compliance scrutiny, but they also have to pay a fee and associated tax. In most cases, it’s about tax evasion, which is ultimately a form of money laundering.

Pakistani airports are frequently used by traders who smuggle foreign currency to duty-free places like Dubai and buy properties.]

Former SBP Governor Anwar Yasin had stirred a controversy in 2013, when he told a parliamentary committee that $25 million was being siphoned out of the country every day in ‘briefcases through the airports.’ The departure of foreign exchange was also blamed for depreciation of the local currency, Pakistani rupee, which in turn added to inflation and caused the economy to stagnate; because no one really knew how many dollars were in circulation or locked up in vaults.

Coming back:

On her first appearance before the court, Ayyan Ali told that ‘she lives in Karachi, her parents are dead and she works in a restaurant in Dubai.’ Later, Ayyan Ali’s father, Raja Hafeez, appeared in the court to plead her innocence. Everyone was shocked to see him. Even the court was surprised; however, he was entertained after he convinced the court with various documentary proofs that he was Ayyan’s real father. Later it was revealed that Ayyan Ali’s mother was also alive and settled in Dubai.

On 6th April 2015; the airport entry pass of the personal assistant [PA] to former president Asif Ali Zardari was cancelled for allegedly trying to facilitate supermodel Ayyan Ali to smuggle over 0.5 million dollars out of the country.

The PA was spotted facilitating Ayyan Ali on 14th March 2015 when she arrived at the Islamabad Airport to catch flight for Dubai. The Airport Security Force [ASF] confiscated the entry pass #03234 authorising the accused to enter all areas of the airports in the country. It was Zardari’s PA who had brought the bag for Ayyan Ali and was seen with her in the lounge. But Ayyan Ali was not alone; reportedly there were scores of others engaged for this laundering business.

Following the cancellation of the entry pass issued to Zardari’s PA, all airports across the country were intimated. On part of the investigation into the case against the model, the customs investigators submitted the challan to the trial court [Customs Special Judge] later. She was arrested for violation of Section 2(s) of the Customs Act 1969; a ‘predicate offence’ under the Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA) 2010. The offence was non-bailable and non-cognisable.

The Lahore High Court’s Rawalpindi bench had already dismissed the post-arrest bail application of the supermodel. On the other hand, the investigators could not get call data from the model’s two mobile phones which were found blocked soon after she was detained at the airport.

On 11th April 2015; during a hearing at Special Customs Court, customs authorities presented a report regarding investigation carried out in the money laundering case against Ayyan. They stated that Ayyan Ali did not cooperate during investigation. The court extended Ayyan’s judicial remand to 14 days and adjourned the hearing till 24th April.

Ayyan Ali, in her initial statements to media - widely reported on tv and printed in major papers, had said that money belonged to Khalid Malik; investigations might have done on that clue also but the Customs people did not have Khalid Malik on papers.

Customs found out that she had travelled abroad 43 times in last two years; like 83 times in last five years. It was soon discovered, which everyone believed privately and publicly, that powerful politicians were running a money laundering racket which was also connected with the “grey traffic” which runs into billions in Pakistan since 1992.

On 22nd April 2015; Zulfiqar Mirza accused former president Asif Ali Zardari of laundering money through super model Ayyan Ali, and called for the formation of a Joint Investigation Team [JIT] to investigate the matter.

In an appearance on the ‘Dawn News’ Live TV show ‘Jaiza’, the former interior minister of Sindh said that the money being laundered to a foreign country belonged to Asif Zardari, asserting that Ayyan Ali was ferried back and forth from Bilawal House with full protocol - had Ayyan Ali not been arrested, she was going to be Faryal Talpur’s sister-in-law; Zardari’s wife.

Mirza said that investigating Zardari for corruption should not be a difficult task for authorities, but despite PM Nawaz Sharif’s statement, the National Accountability Bureau [NAB] was not taking action against such corrupt people. Poor Dr Mirza didn’t know that both were one and the same from inside; both were taking Meesaq e Jamhooriat seriously and religiously.

MAFIA KILLED AYYAN CASE’s I.O:

On 2nd June 2015; the customs official, allegedly investigating the money laundering case against Ayyan Ali, was shot and killed. On the other hand, Pakistan Customs refuted claims that deceased Inspector Ejaz Chaudhry was involved in the said high-profile investigation.

According to the police, unidentified gunmen intercepted Inspector Chaudhry’s car near his house in the Qasimabad area at around 5:30pm and fired multiple shots at him. He was rushed to the Benazir Bhutto Hospital where he succumbed to his injuries.

Meanwhile, the station house officer [SHO] at the Waris Khan police station was suspended by Regional Police Officer [RPO] for not reporting the incident to his superiors. The SHO had registered an FIR but did not take much interest in the matter, failing to inform senior police officials as a special reported case. Officials denied links between customs officer’s murder and Ayyan Ali case.

RPO Raja told the media that he suspended the SHO for failing to inform senior officials and registering the FIR under section 324 of the Pakistan Penal Code [PPC]; later made out to be a case of armed robbery in which the customs officer had attempted to resist the robbers.

Meanwhile, Pakistan Customs officials also denied reports connecting the murder of Ejaz Chaudhry with the Ayyan Ali case. Additional Customs Collector Waheed Marwat told the media that:

“Customs Inspector Chaudhry was neither the investigation officer in the Ayyan Ali Case nor was he present at the time of her arrest. He was in charge of the warehouse at the Islamabad Airport; it appears to be an incident of target killing.

Bullets were found lodged inside the car, on the roof and the main door which means that when shots were fired at him, he retaliated by shooting at the gunmen but missed his target.

Preliminary investigation has failed to ascertain why he was attacked but police is speculating that either it was robbery or an act of vengeance.”

No eye-witnesses could be found but the victim’s family came out of the house when they heard gunshots and saw the shooters fleeing the scene.

The irony of fate was that every one was telling lie; from peon to the officer, in police and in customs department – all they were following the same cover-up story. See a year latter’s activity in next paragraphs which appeared in the British newspaper ‘Daily Mail’ dated 21st July 2016.

On 6th July 2015; Ayyan Ali alleged that she was facing discriminatory treatment during her trial in her currency smuggling case. She claimed that while others facing similar charges were released on bail she had been behind bars since months. This was the first time since her arrest that the supermodel broke her silence and directly addressed the court.

Ayyan Ali told the court that her modelling career was at stake because of her prolonged detention. She said that she had signed a number of contracts with various advertisers and she was unable to fulfil her obligations. She also complained about the negative media campaign surrounding her trial; being negatively projected on social media, too. Ayyan Ali claimed:

“I have no connection with any political leader. The media outlets should not politicise the legal proceedings. I will take legal action against those who started vicious campaign against me.

I am citizen of this country and I have certain rights but it appears that my constitutional rights have been taken away.”

Ayyan Ali assured the court that she would not go abroad after seeking bail. Her counsel Sardar Latif Khan Khosa also urged that on social media, numerous people were accusing Ayyan Ali of having links with politicians and businessmen. He also filed an application before the court requesting that the media be restrained from engaging in propaganda against the supermodel. Further proceedings were adjourned.

Meanwhile, the court also took up an application filed by the Federal Board of Revenue [FBR] seeking registration of a case against Ayyan Ali under Anti-Money Laundering Act.

On 16th July 2015; Ayyan Ali was released on bail but she could not travel abroad or get back her money and passports. She even had to inform the trial court before leaving for Karachi after the court proceedings ended. She was granted bail after spending about four months in Rawalpindi’s notorious Adiala Jail – and after her judicial remand was extended 16 times.

Astonishingly neither she, nor the trial court, asked customs collectorate for the custody of her passports or her mobile phones, which were being kept as ‘case property’ with customs; all her belongings were confiscated by customs on 14th March, including her two passports.

On 5th November 2015; the customs court heard a petition filed by Ayyan Ali seeking acquittal in the currency smuggling case. The prosecution argued that if Ayyan was carrying more than $10,000 with her out of the country, she should have declared it to the authorities.

The prosecution lawyers added that the investigation team also wanted to know where the model acquired such a huge amount of foreign currency. They also termed the acquittal plea a delaying tactic by the defence and prayed the court to indict the model.

Ayyan’s counsel Sardar Latif Khosa argued that his client was born in Dubai in 1993 and her mother and brother were settled there in a ‘posh apartment’. Khosa said Ayyan was a source of pride for Pakistan in the world of modelling. After counsels from both sides completed their arguments on the acquittal plea, the court while reserving the judgment, adjourned the hearing for next day.

The special court of customs, on 6th November 2015, dismissed Ayyan’s acquittal plea. Ayyan Ali then filed an appeal to that refusal order in the Lahore High Court, which the court admitted for hearing. She was not able to get back her dollars because she had not preferred her appeal with the Collector of Adjudication, Islamabad.

On 19th November 2015; rejecting the arguments of her counsel Sardar Latif Khan Khosa, the Customs Judge Rawalpindi Rana Aftab Ahmed indicted Ayyan; eight months after she was arrested. She was indicted for attempting to smuggle out of the country more than half a million dollars in cash; she pleaded not guilty. The prosecution witnesses were called on 8th December 2015 to record their statements.

The delay in the model’s indictment had also been part of the controversy then prevailing on social media. Firstly, the case took a political turn when the airport entry pass of Zardari’s personal assistant [PA] was cancelled, as detailed in earlier paragraphs, for allegedly trying to facilitate Ayyan Ali at Islamabad Airport. Then in June, a customs official allegedly investigating the said case against the model was shot dead.

Ayyan Ali’s counsel, former Punjab governor Sardar Latif Khan Khosa earlier said his client had been arrested on false charges of money laundering. He said the Customs Act lacked interpretation of attempted money laundering. He said the petitioner was not allowed to record her statement after the arrest, which was mandatory under Section 139 of the said Act.

Khosa said the petitioner had told the investigators at a very initial stage that she had got the money by selling property. He said the petitioner had carried the money to the airport to hand it over to her brother who was arriving from Dubai the same day.

On 1st December 2015; the customs court Rawalpindi comprising of Rana Aftab Ahmed Khan returned the passports of money-laundering suspect Ayyan Ali after she submitted two surety bonds worth Rs:1 million each, and a document of personal guarantee in the court.

Earlier that day, Ayyan Ali appeared in the court in hopes to retrieve her passports but the judge rejected the personal surety [of Ayyan Ali] and two surety bonds worth Rs:1 million each for lacking documentation and details. The judge had directed the accused to resubmit the documents in light of court directions and legal guidelines.

On 15th December 2015; Ayyan Ali approached the Sindh High Court, asking for the removal of her name from the Exit Control List [ECL]. Making the interior ministry and in-charge Karachi Airport as respondents, Ayyan’s lawyer contended her inclusion in the ECL violated fundamental rights in light of Article 18 of the Constitution.

On 7th March 2016; a divisional bench of the Sindh High Court [SHC] ordered the removal of Ayyan Ali’s name from the Exit Control List [ECL]. Headed by Justice Ali M Sheikh, the division bench reserved its verdict after hearing arguments from the federal law officer and her lawyer.

The interior ministry had filed comments stating that the petitioner’s name was put on the ECL on the request of Customs authorities. Since a case related to money laundering was pending adjudication against the petitioner, she could not be allowed to leave the country. Ayyan Ali’s lawyer, Sardar Latif Khosa, argued that placing her name on the ECL was a violation of fundamental rights envisaged in the Constitution.

[No one in Pakistan considers that if trial of a currency smuggler and a co-accused in Custom Inspector’s murder amounts to violation of Fundamental Rights – then for how many days should that society exist any more.]

PML[N] GOVT SIDED WITH AYYAN ALI:

On 16th March 2016; the federal government through its Collectorate of Customs filed an appeal in the Supreme Court against the Sindh High Court’s order dated 7th March 2016 calling for the removal of Pakistani Model Ayyan Ali’s name from the Exit Control List [ECL]. In SHC’s order, the federal Interior Secretary was directed to immediately remove Ayyan’s name from the ECL and submit compliance report within 14 days.

The appeal stated that all prosecution evidences would be recorded on 24th March and the trial was expected to conclude in a short time span, had the petitioner extended due cooperation. The government also expressed apprehension that there was a chance that Ayyan could leave the country to escape the proceedings which were near conclusion.

The government’s appeal said that the impugned judgment was illegal, unlawful without jurisdiction and authority and also against facts on record. The appeal contended that the SHC had erred in appreciating the facts in their true context; while saying that:

“As per facts and the circumstances of the case, the high court has failed in determination of very important legal aspects to the serious prejudice of the petitioner (government).”

On 24th March 2016; Ayyan Ali requested the Supreme Court of Pakistan [SC] to quash the appeal filed by the federal government against Sindh High Court’s 7th March order, calling for the removal of her name from the Exit Control List. She urged the apex court through her counsel, ASC Sardar Latif Khosa:

“I desperately need to travel abroad for fulfilment of my professional obligations and to see my ailing mother in Dubai. Her constitutional rights were being ruthlessly violated as judgement of the SHC had already been on record. I’ve given huge sureties for her release on bail and towards superdari of her passport.”

On 30th March 2016; a Special Customs Court dismissed Federal Board of Revenue [FBR]’s application seeking permission to initiate a fresh investigation in Ayyan Ali’s money laundering case. Judge Rana Aftab A Khan had reserved his judgement on the FBR’s plea on 24th March after both sides presented their arguments.

In the said application, the FBR had maintained that the department wanted to initiate a fresh investigation against Ayyan Ali under charges of money laundering. Earlier, the department had held investigations against the model on charges of currency smuggling only.

However, the decision of Special Customs Court was contested because the PML[N]’s Interior Minister had amended the money laundering laws through an office order on 1st April 2015 – and the Pakistan Customs had booked Ali on 14th March 2015 on charges of currency smuggling. At that time no such provision was available in the law. The principle applied in such situation is:

“If any crime took place before the amendment, the accused cannot be tried or grilled under the amended law.”

The fact remained that the investigators of Pakistan Customs had questioned Ayyan Ali under charges of currency smuggling only and included the same in the final investigation report submitted to the trial court – there was no mention of ‘money laundering clause’ in it.

On 3rd April 2016; in the wake of plea by the Customs Collectorate, the interior ministry also approached the Supreme Court separately against the Sindh High Court [SHC] dated 7th March order directing the ministry to remove Ayyan Ali’s name from the Exit Control List [ECL]. The interior ministry held that the name of Ayyan was placed on the no-fly list on the recommendation of the Federal Board of Revenue [FBR].

The interior ministry had contended that uploading the list of persons on ECL by the ministry of interior on its website may create social and cultural problems for them because society would show hate toward such persons on ECL whether guilty or not when they are followed on website.

On 13th April 2016; the Supreme Court upheld Sindh High Court’s [SHC] order to remove Ayyan’s name from the country’s Exit Control List [ECL]. A three judges bench of the Supreme Court headed by Justice Ejaz Afzal Khan passed the judgment; the bench upheld the model should be allowed to travel abroad.
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